Brigham Young University Law School
BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Court of Appeals Briefs (2007–)

2015

I

Utah Court of Appeals

Jurisdictional Statement

The Utah Court of Appeals has jurisdiction to hear this appeal pursuant to Utah Code Ann. § 78A-4-103(2)(h).

Statement of Issues & Standard of Review

a. Issue: Did the trial court err when it failed to state any finding that there had been a material change in the circumstances upon which the previous visitation award was based when it granted Petitioner's Petition to Modify and remove all conditions for her unsupervised visitation?

Standard of review: The standard of review for this issue, as an issue of law, is *de novo*. *Hogge v Hogge*, 649 P.2d 51 (1982).

b. Did the trial court err when it decided that Petitioner's inability to comply with conditions for her unsupervised parent time constituted a material change in circumstances upon which to base a modification of a custody award?

Standard of review: The standard of review for this issue, as an issue of law, is *de novo*.

Hogge v Hogge, 649 P.2d 51 (1982).

c. Did the trial court err when it signed the Order drafted by Petitioner's counsel a mere 3 days after it was submitted (when those days included a legal holiday and a weekend) when Petitioner's counsel had not served it on Respondent and when Respondent was not given the proper time to file an objection but did file a timely objection once he, on his own, found out about the existence of the Order?

Standard of review: The standard of review for this issue, as an issue of law, is *de novo*.

Hogge v Hogge, 649 P.2d 51 (1982).

d. Did the trial court err when it deprived Respondent of his right to Due Process by refusing to allow him to argue his Motion to Dismiss Petitioner's Petition to Modify during the hearing and instead merely stated that he had made his decision and was going to grant the Petition, the judge signed the Order without notifying the Respondent and never sent a copy of the Order to the Respondent, failed to act on two properly noticed and submitted motions that were not objected to for a period of six months, and when the judge changed a status conference into an evidentiary hearing without notice and did not give Respondent an opportunity to prepare or rebut Petitioner's witnesses?

Standard of review: The standard of review for this issue, as an issue of law, is *de novo*.

Hogge v Hogge, 649 P.2d 51 (1982).

e. Did the trial court err when converted Petitioner's Order to Show Cause into a Petition to Modify when the Petitioner herself stated on the Record that she was not seeking a Petition to Modify but only to have the court rule on who was in compliance with the existing order?

Standard of review: The standard of review for this issue, as an issue of law, is *de novo*. *Hogge v Hogge*, 649 P.2d 51 (1982). However, it is possible that the court has some discretion in this matter, in which case the standard of review would be abuse of discretion.

Statutory Provisions

The relevant portions of Utah Rules of Civil Procedure 7 are included in the Appendix.

Statement of the Case

This is an appeal from the Order Modifying Custody Order (see Appendix) granted by the Fourth District Court, Utah County, granting Morkel's Order to Show Cause, which was *sua sponte* converted into a Petition to Modify by Judge Taylor. In addition Judge Taylor refused to hear or rule on Blocker's properly pled and submitted motions, failed to allow Blocker to argue his case before the court, and did not give Blocker an opportunity to object to the Order once it was written and submitted by Morkel's counsel.

Statement of the Facts

Issue 1: The trial court's Order does not include any findings of fact at all. It simply states a conclusion that Morkel's Petition is granted and her visitation is now to be unsupervised without condition. Despite Blocker's repeated request that Judge Taylor give a reasoning for his order and Blocker's repeated citing of *Hogge v. Hogge*, the Judge simply stated, "I'm familiar with the law. That's my ruling." (Transcript June 10, 2015, page 9 lines 14-15) and "That's my ruling. I have wide discretion in these matters." (Transcript June 10, 2015, page 9 lines 18-19). And then when asked to specify where he found a material change in circumstances as required to support Morkel's Petition to Modify, Judge Taylor was unable to do so, instead stating, "I think there is satisfactory evidence in this file to demonstrate that what I'm ruling is in the best interest of the child. That's my order." (Transcript, June 10, 2015, page 11, lines 18-20.)

Issue 2: When Judge Davis originally ordered that Morkel's parent time visitation would be supervised unless certain conditions were satisfied some of the bases for that order were that he was giving her "one last chance" to show that she could follow court orders, cooperate with professionals, and to insure that she was working with the court-appointed therapist to address her parenting and co-parenting issues so that she could see her own negative behaviors and their impacts on our son and her own inability to reason, to identify her own issues and take responsibility for them. (See Findings of Fact, Order, and Judgement of Judge Davis Signed February 22, 2010 in Appendix.) In his Order Judge Davis stated that it was anticipated the Morkel would make some improvements: The Court is hopeful and expects that Kirsteen Morkel will make significant progress in both her parenting skills and in

her relationship with Mackay and Michael Blocker.” Judge Davis specifically did this at the urging of the Guardian ad Litem so that such improvement would not constitute a change in circumstances for purposes of modifying the order later.

Not only has Morkel not made any improvements, she has continued her bad behavior and Judge Taylor used that very bad behavior as justification for modifying the Order. When Morkel filed her Order to Show Cause both parties and the Judge clearly stated on the Record that this was not a Petition to Modify and was not going to be a Petition to Modify but was an Order to Show Cause asking the court to determine who was in compliance with Judge Davis’s Order. However, when we came to court the next time, Judge Taylor in and of himself stated that it was impossible for Morkel to comply with the Order because she had sued the Special Master, the Guardian ad Litem, Blocker’s Attorneys, and Judge Davis in Federal Court¹ and had threatened to sue the court-appointed conjoint therapist and child’s therapist. Judge Taylor further acknowledged that Morkel came to the court with unclean hands in the matter, but nevertheless, he *sua sponte* turned her Order to Show Cause into a Petition to Modify and ordered a superficial “Home Visit Report,” by a therapist of Morkel’s choosing.²

Issue 3: At the hearing on June 10, 2015, Judge Taylor instructed Morkel’s Counsel to draft the order. According to the Certificate of Service, Petitioner’s Counsel claims he mailed

¹ Judge Waddoups granted Defendants’ Motions to Dismiss in that case. Morkel unsuccessfully appealed to the Tenth Circuit. Judge Taylor was fully aware of Morkel’s behavior in that case and her actions to use litigation tactics to remove more than 20 past court-appointed professionals from this case.

² This report was later conducted by an unlicensed therapist who was sanctioned, issued a cease and desist letter, and fined by the Department of Professional Licensing for her involvement and report in this case. Nevertheless, Judge Taylor refused to strike the report or to remove the unlicensed therapist from the case despite Blocker’s properly pled and submitted motion to do so.

a copy of proposed order to Respondent on June 25, 2015. Respondent never received a mailing.³ On Thursday, July 2, 2015, Petitioner's Counsel filed the proposed order with the court. Judge Taylor signed the proposed order the very next business day, on Monday, July 6. Blocker found out about the order through Xchange on July 14 and immediately filed an objection to the proposed order with the court within the 10 day period, even though it had already been signed previously. (See copy in Appendix). No response was ever given to Blocker's objection. Further, Blocker never received a copy nor any notice from the court that the Order had been received or signed.

Issue 4: In advance of the hearing to be held on April 16, 2014 the court scheduled hearing to address Morkel's Order to Show Cause to Enforce the Order. Both parties expressly stated on the record that they were not seeking to modify the order but merely to have the court rule on who was in compliance with the existing order. Judge Taylor agreed that this was the purpose of the hearing. All parties and the judge explicitly agreed that this was not a Petition to Modify and was not going to be Petition to Modify but rather a hearing to determine who was in compliance. However, when the hearing actually took place, Judge Taylor *sua sponte* changed Morkel's Motion into a Petition to Modify based on the Morkel's noncompliance with the order putting her in a position where she couldn't comply with the order because she had sued the special master, the Guardian Ad Litem, and threatened to sue the child's court-appointed therapist.

³ The certificate of service also notes that "counsel of record" was served, however, as Petitioner's counsel was fully aware, Respondent's counsel, who had only made a limited appearance for a single hearing that was never held, officially withdrew at the beginning of the June 10 hearing and was not involved in that hearing. Additionally, said counsel also did not receive any proposed order in this matter.

On August 1, 2014 the court had a status conference scheduled in this case. The parties were both told that this was to be a status conference and nothing more. However, Morkel came to court with her expert, Victoria Burgess, and proceeded to introduce the report written by Ms. Burgess and ask the court to accept the report and grant her Petition to Modify at that time. Although the parties were explicitly told that this was NOT going to be an evidentiary hearing, the court agreed to accept the report. When Blocker objected to the admission of the report, Judge Taylor told Blocker that he could cross-examine Ms. Burgess. When Blocker said that he was not prepared to do so because the hearing was to be a status conference and not an evidentiary hearing, he was told that was his opportunity to question the witness. Because he was not prepared to do so, the witness did not take the stand, Judge Taylor accepted the report without any cross examination.

On November 21, 2014 Blocker filed a Notice to Submit for Decision on two motions, first a Motion to Dismiss Morkel's Petition to Modify and second, a Motion to Strike the Home Visit Report of Victoria Burgess. Judge Taylor never scheduled a hearing, signed, denied, or took any action on either of Blocker's motions. Instead he simply waited until June 2015 and summarily granted Morkel's Petition to Modify without any argument and without giving Blocker an opportunity to even argue his Motion to Dismiss or Motion to Strike even though they had been properly noticed for decision.

At the June 10, 2015 hearing Judge Taylor refused to allow Blocker to argue his Motion to Dismiss Morkel's Petition to Modify during the hearing and instead merely stated that Judge Taylor had made his decision and was going to grant the Petition. First, when the Judge asked Blocker to tell him what was pending before the court for that hearing and Blocker tried

to state what was pending, the Judge immediately cut him off, would not let him state the two motions that he had properly pending before the court (that had been properly noticed and submitted for decision) and instead went to Morkel's counsel and asked him to set the agenda for the hearing. (See Transcript in Appendix) Second, when Judge Taylor made his ruling Blocker tried to make the legal argument that Utah case law in *Hogge v. Hogge* did not allow the ruling (the argument he wanted to make initially), Judge Taylor cut him off and simply said that he had "broad discretion in these matters" and refused to give any basis in law for his decision. Curtly he told Blocker, "I'm sorry that you don't understand what I've ruled and the basis of my jurisdiction —Mr. Blocker, I'm sorry that you don't get it. I've made my ruling. I have earlier indicated I would treat the petition to modify — or the order to show cause as a petition to modify. I think there's satisfac — satisfactory evidence in this file to demonstrate that what I'm ruling is in the best interest of the child. That's my order." (Transcript June 10, 2015, page 11, lines 13-20).

Judge Taylor refused to hear or respond to Blocker's legal arguments on either of his properly pending motions. Then although it was Morkel's burden to show that her circumstances had changed to sufficient to warrant a modification of the custody order against her, Judge Taylor actually placed the burden on Blocker, saying, "I want you to tell me why I should make a change [back to what was in Judge Davis's Order and not Taylor's temporary order]. Why is the status quo [giving Morkel unconditional visitation] not best for your child?" (Transcript, June 10, 2015, page 6, lines 11-13). When Blocker tried to explain that nothing in Morkel's behavior had ever changed including the reasons why Morkel had lost custody in the first place, Judge Taylor again put the burden on Blocker asking for specific negative behavior

during the past year. (Transcript, June 10, 2015, page 6, lines 14-18). Blocker did what he could to explain the situation and even offered that the child's court-appointed therapist would be able to testify to the continuing harm Morkel causes the child, but Judge Taylor was uninterested, and instead decided that because the files was, in his words, "a procedural mess," and "really hard to figure out what's going in this case," that instead of trying to figure out whether the circumstances had actually changed, he would treat his temporary order as the "permanent state of affairs." (Transcript, June 15, 2015, page 8).

As outlined above Judge Taylor signed the Order without notifying Blocker and never sent a copy of the Order to Blocker.

Issue 5: In advance of the hearing to be held on April 16, 2014 the court scheduled hearing to address Morkel's Order to Show Cause to Enforce the Order. Both parties expressly stated on the record that they were not seeking to modify the order but merely to have the court rule on who was in compliance with the existing order. Judge Taylor agreed that this was the purpose of the hearing. All parties and the judge explicitly agreed that this was not a Petition to Modify and was not going to be Petition to Modify but rather a hearing to determine who was in compliance. However, when the hearing actually took place, Judge Taylor *sua sponte* changed Morkel's Motion into a Petition to Modify based on the Morkel's noncompliance with the order putting her in a position where she couldn't comply with the order because she had sued the special master, the Guardian Ad Litem, and threatened to sue the child's court-appointed therapist.

Summary of the Argument

The Court should reverse the trial court's grant of Morkel's petition to modify because she did not show a material change in circumstances to justify such a modification and the court denied Blocker due process in summarily finding a change when none was proved.

The trial court erred when it failed to state any finding that there had been a material change in the circumstances upon which the previous visitation award was based when it granted Morkel's Petition to Modify and removed all conditions for her unsupervised visitation.

The trial court erred when it decided that Morkel's inability to comply with conditions for her unsupervised parent time constituted a material change in circumstances upon which to base a modification of a custody award.

The trial court erred when it signed the Order drafted by Morkel's counsel a mere three (3) days after it was submitted (when those days included a legal holiday and a weekend) when Morkel's counsel had not served it on Blocker and when Blocker was not given the proper time to file an objection but did file a timely objection once he, on his own, found out about the existence of the Order?

The trial court err when it deprived Blocker of his right to Due Process by refusing to allow him to argue his Motion to Dismiss Petitioner's Petition to Modify during the hearing and instead merely stated that he had made his decision and was going to grant the Petition, the judge signed the Order without notifying Blocker and never sent a copy of the Order to Blocker, failed to act on two properly noticed and submitted motions that were not objected to for a period of six months, and when the judge changed a status conference into an

evidentiary hearing without notice and did not give Blocker an opportunity to prepare or rebut Morkel's witnesses.

The trial court err when it converted Morkel's Order to Show Cause into a Petition to Modify when Morkel herself stated on the Record that she was not seeking a Petition to Modify but only to have the court rule on who was in compliance with the existing order.

Argument

THE COURT SHOULD REVERSE THE TRIAL COURT'S GRANT OF MORKEL'S PETITION TO MODIFY BECAUSE SHE DID NOT SHOW A MATERIAL CHANGE IN CIRCUMSTANCES TO JUSTIFY SUCH A MODIFICATION AND THE COURT DENIED BLOCKER DUE PROCESS IN SUMMARILY FINDING A CHANGE WHEN NONE WAS PROVED.

- A. The trial court erred when it failed to state any finding that there had been a material change in the circumstances upon which the previous visitation award was based when it granted Morkel's Petition to Modify and removed all conditions for her unsupervised visitation.

In *Hogge v. Hogge*, 649 P.2d 54 (Utah 1982), the Utah Supreme Court expressly requires a trial court to articulate a specific finding in its order showing that there has been a material change in circumstances before it grants a Petition to Modify a Custody Award. The Court stated, "Accordingly, we hold that in the future a trial court's decision to modify a decree by transferring custody of a minor child must involve two separate steps. In the initial step, the court will receive evidence only as to the nature and materiality of any changes in those circumstances upon which the earlier award of custody was based. In this step, the party seeking modification must demonstrate (1) that since the time of the previous decree, there have been changes in the circumstances upon which the previous award was based; and (2)

that those changes are sufficiently substantial and material to justify reopening the question of custody. The trial court **must make a separate finding as to whether this burden of proof has been met.** If so, the court, either as a continuation of the same hearing, or in a separate hearing, will proceed to the second step. However, where that burden of proof is not met, the trial court will not reach the second step, the petition to modify will be denied, and the existing custody award will remain unchanged.” *Id.* (emphasis added). Judge Taylor’s order in this case not only fails to have a “separate finding” as to whether Morkel met the burden of proof for a change in circumstances, the order has no findings of fact at all. The Order has only the declaration that the custody award is modified in Morkel’s favor with no basis given whatsoever. This clearly does not satisfy the requirements set forth by the Supreme Court in *Hogge* and alone requires reversal of the district court’s order. However, even more important than this technical violation of *Hogge* is the substantive violation that follows.

B. The trial court erred when it decided that Morkel’s inability to comply with conditions for her unsupervised parent time constituted a material change in circumstances upon which to base a modification of a custody award.

In *Hogge v. Hogge*, 649 P.2d 54 (Utah 1982), the Utah Supreme Court expressly requires a trial court to find a material change in circumstances before modifying a custody award. This material change is not to any circumstance in the case but is required to be specifically to “the circumstances upon which the previous award was based.” *Id.*

The material change in circumstances in this case is Morkel’s inability to comply with the conditions of her unsupervised parent time, including the appointment of and cooperation with a special master, along with paying the fees of the Special Master, conjoint therapy with

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