Brigham Young University Law School BYU Law Digital Commons

Utah Court of Appeals Briefs (2007-)

2016

Kirsteen Blocker (Morkel), Petitioner and Appellee, vs. Michael Blocker, Respondent and Appellant.

Utah Court of Appeals

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

ARGUMENT I

BLOCKER ARGUES THAT THE TRIAL COURT ERRED WHEN IT FAILED TO STATE ANY FINDINGS THAT THERE HAD BEEN A MATERIAL CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES TO WARRANT CHANGING SUPERVISED VISITATION TO UNSUPERVISED VISITATION BUT DOES NOT INDICATE WHERE IN THE RECORD HIS ISSUE IS PRESERVED NOR DOES HE MARSHAL THE EVIDENCE OR CITE TO THE RECORD. THUS, THIS COURT SHOULD REFUSE TO CONSIDER THE MERITS OF THE ARGUMENTS AND ACCEPT THE COURT'S RULING AS VALID. IN THE ALTERNATIVE, THE RECORD DOES NOT SUPPORT BLOCKER'S ARGUMENT.

11

1. Blocker's claim of no findings and no material change of circumstances.

In a blanket statement, Blocker's first issue on appeal is that the trial court failed to make any findings that there had been a material change of circumstances to warrant changing supervised parent time to unsupervised parent time. In the substance of the argument, Blocker simply states that the court must make a specific finding in its order showing there had been a material change in circumstances before it granted a Petition to Modify Custody. Blocker fails to cite where his issue is preserved by the record, nor are there any record citations or any attempt at marshaling evidence.

Ut. R. Appellate Procedure 24, Briefs, (a)(7)requires, among other things, that "All statements of fact and reference to the proceedings below shall be supported by citations to the record in accordance with paragraph (e) of this rule." Paragraph (e) states, "References in briefs to the record. References shall be made to the pages of the original record as paginated pursuant to Rule 11(b) or to pages of any statement of the evidence or proceedings or agreed statement prepared pursuant to Rule 11(f) or 11 (g)." Further, (a)(9) requires, in pertinent part, that the Appellant must, in the argument section of the brief, first marshal all record evidence that supports the challenged finding.

Blocker cites only to the limited and unpaginated documents attached to his addendum. Blocker utterly fails to conform to the requirement of record citations, or where issues were preserved at the trial court level, or to marshal evidence that supports the Court's ruling. An appealing party has a duty to "marshal the evidence in support of the findings and then demonstrate that despite this evidence, the trial court's findings are so lacking in support as to be "against the

12

۲

۲

۲

6

0

0

0

۲

clear weight of the evidence, thus making them clearly erroneous". <u>Lefavi v. Bertoch</u>, 994 P.2d 817, 821 (Utah Ct. App. 2000) (quoting <u>Valcarce v. Fitzgerald</u>, 961 P2 305, 312 (Utah 1998) (quoting <u>In re Estate of Bartell</u>, 776 P.2d 885, 886 (Utah Ct. App 1989).

When a party fails to marshal the evidence in support of the challenged findings, this Court "refuse[s] to consider the merits of challenges to the findings and accept[s] the findings as valid." <u>Lefavi</u>, at 821 (citing <u>Oneida/SLIC v. Oneida Cold Storage and Warehouse</u>, 872 P.2d 1051, 1053 (Utah Ct. App. 1994)(quoting <u>Mountain States Broadcasting Co. V. Neale</u>, 783 P.2d 551, 553 (Utah Ct. App. 1989).)

This Court should refuse to consider the merits of Blocker's challenge and accept the Trial Court's Order and decision as valid.

2. In the alternative, Blocker's arguments are not well taken. Contrary to Blocker's representation that no findings were made, they in fact were, encompassed within this order and prior orders issued by the court.

Without regurgitating the Statement of Facts encompassing the prior eleven years, suffice it to say that originally custody of the minor child resided with Morkel, as culled from the divorce decree of July 8, 2004. Custody was changed to Blocker by order of Judge Davis on February 22, 2010, and laid out conditions that were to be satisfied for unsupervised parent time. Supervised visitation was subsequently imposed, with attendant motions and hearings but were lifted on August 1, 2014, following a recommendation by a home evaluator.

The order was reduced to writing on August 22, 2014, and the supervised parent time changed to unsupervised. Although the written order did not fully incorporate specific findings,

13

0

۲

۲

0

0

the trial judge was on the front line with numerous motions initiated by Morkel's Motion for an Order to Show Cause which the Court sua sponte changed to a Petition to Modify. There followed a blizzard of competing motions and arguments that resulted in a period of supervision of Morkel during her parent time, by a party stipulated to by both Blocker and Morkel.

The Court also required a home study evaluator and set deadlines. Based on the home study evaluation the court recommended that Morkel did not need supervision and the court ordered there would be no further supervision. The Court considered the recommendation of the evaluator as reflected in its Minute Status Conference ruling of August 1, 2014, which stated "Based on the report received by the Court, the Court strikes supervised visitation at this time", and also the order of August 22, 2014, further considered "briefing [by the parties], the argument of counsel and otherwise being fully informed in this matter" (which presumably included that there were no problems during the entire period from August 1, 2014 to the execution of the Order Modifying Custody Order of July 6, 2016, a period of almost a year and the current status of the law disfavoring supervised parent time except in rare circumstances (see R. 6281) and issued its order simply restoring unsupervised statutory minimum visitation. This was a material and substantial change of circumstances since it changed the prior requirement of supervision to no supervision. Although not specifically addressing findings per se, nevertheless these were findings incorporated by the trial court in its actions and followed by the parties. Finally, the best interests of the minor child were implicitly found by the Court, and hinged its "no supervision" order on the recommendation of the home study evaluator.

The Utah Supreme Court has accorded broad discretion to the Court in activities of this

۲

0

0

0

0

۲

0

۲

nature. In determining permanent physical custody of a minor child, trial judges are accorded broad discretion. See <u>Tucker v. Tucker</u>, 910 P.2d 1209 (referencing <u>Davis v. Davis</u>, 749 P.2d 647, 648 (Utah 1988); <u>Moody v. Moody</u>, 715 P.2d 507, 510 (Utah 1985). "Only where the trial court's judgment is so flagrantly unjust as to be an abuse of discretion, will [an appellate court] interpose its own judgment". <u>Shioji v. Shioji</u>, 712 P.2d 197, 201 (Utah 1985).

In the case at bar, there was a complete failure by Blocker to marshal any type of evidence as to why the trial court's judgment was so flagrantly unjust as to be an abuse of discretion. There was a claim of a purported failure by the trial court to show a material change of circumstances or make findings yet there clearly was a change of supervised parent time to unsupervised parent time, that prevailed for almost a year without impediment or difficulty. If the protection of the children provided by supervised visitation is no longer necessary, either because the allegations that necessitated the supervision are determined to be without 'credible evidence' or because the noncustodial parent had demonstrated a clear ability to control the propensities which necessitated the supervision, the circuit court should gradually diminish the degree of supervision required with the ultimate goal of providing unsupervised visitation. <u>Carter v. Carter</u>, 470 S.E. 2d 193,200(1996).

As to either alternative, i.e., that Blocker has not complied in the least degree with the requirements of marshaling evidence, illustrating preservation of issues at the trial court level or citing to the record or failed, alternatively, to show abuse of discretion, the lower court order should be affirmed and attorney's fees awarded.

ARGUMENT II

BLOCKER'S ARGUMENT THAT THE TRIAL COURT ERRED WHEN IT HELD THAT

15

0

0

 \bigcirc

٢

0

0

(a)

MORKEL'S INABILITY TO COMPLY WITH CONDITIONS FOR HER UNSUPERVISED PARENT TIME CONSTITUTED A MATERIAL CHANGE IN CIRCUMSTANCES UPON WHICH TO BASE A MODIFICATION OF A CUSTODY AWARD FAILS FOR WANT OF RECORD CITATION OR CITATION TO PRESERVATION OF THE EVIDENCE MAKING THIS ISSUE IMPOSSIBLE IN WHICH TO RESPOND AND THE LOWER COURT'S ORDER SHOULD BE AFFIRMED

There is no evidence provided by Blocker that shows the Court held that Morkel's inability to comply with conditions for her unsupervised parent time constituted a material change in circumstances upon which to base a modification of a custody award. It is fundamental to Blocker's argument that the judge held, somewhere in the 54 hearings he claims in his brief, that this holding exists. It would have been a simple matter to cite to the record or provide, even, a copy of the purported order in his addendum. There is no record citation or preservation of the record that indicates that the trial judge ever made this ruling. In fact, the only evidence offered by Blocker, attached in his addendum, is the Order Modifying Custody Order which alludes to the court considering briefing, argument of counsel and otherwise being informed in the matter. This order doesn't say what Blocker says it says. However, it does allude to the opposite, i.e., that the provisional order of the court, entered on Aug. 22, 2014, which provided on a temporary basis the Petitioner's (Morkel) right to visitation consistent with the statutory minimum SHALL BE MADE PERMANENT (capitalization the Courts).

The only conclusion that can be drawn was that the unsupervised parent time was successful and thus, the provisional order became permanent. The unsupported statement that the court "decided that Morkel's inability to comply with conditions for her unsupervised parent time constituted a material change in circumstances upon which to base a modification of a custody

16

۲

0

۲

۲

0

٢

0

0

award" is a fraud on the court.

In addition to the misrepresentation by Blocker of a purported court order that never existed, the further difficulty in attempting to mount a response to Blocker's claims that "The trial court erred when it decided that Morkel's inability to comply with conditions for her unsupervised parent time constituted a material change in circumstances upon which to base a modification of a custody award" is the complete absence of citations to the record. References to Dr. Kirk Thorn, Dr. Matthew Davies, Special Master Sandra Dredge and Guardian ad Litem Kelly Peterson are nonexistent in record citations. Blocker makes arguments relating to Thorn, Davies, Dredge and Peterson but there are simply no record citations in support of the purported statements of these people. Morkel has made an exhaustive record citation in her Statement of Facts, and Blocker has completely failed in any citations to the record in support of his arguments. Morkel is entitled to rely on the recommendation of the home study evaluator who stated there was no further need of supervised parent time. She is entitled to rely on the Court's order accepting the recommendation. Both the report and the orders of the court are specifically cited to the record by Morkel. Part of that record citation was that the prior recommendations of other evaluators were essentially, stale dated, in that they were over 5 years old and no longer pertinent. Yet, Blocker continues to refer to them in this argument without any type of record citation.

This Court should refuse to consider the merits of the claims set forth in Blocker's second argument and award attorneys fees and costs to Morkel for the misrepresentation of a court order and failing to abide by the requirements set forth in the Utah Rules of Appellate Procedure.

17

0

۲

٢

۲

0

0

ARGUMENT III

BLOCKER'S ARGUMENT THAT THE TRIAL COURT ERRED WHEN IT SIGNED THE ORDER DRAFTED BY MORKEL'S COUNSEL A MERE THREE DAYS AFTER IT WAS SUBMITTED (WHEN THOSE DAYS INCLUDED A LEGAL HOLIDAY AND A WEEKEND) WHEN MORKEL'S COUNSEL HAD NOT SERVED IT ON BLOCKER AND WHEN BLOCKER WAS NOT GIVEN THE PROPER TIME TO FILE AN OBJECTION BUT DID FILE A TIMELY OBJECTION ONCE HE, ON HIS OWN, FOUND OUT ABOUT THE EXISTENCE OF THE ORDER FAILS FOR WANT OF RECORD CITATION AND CITE THAT THE ISSUE WAS PRESERVED AT TRIAL; IT ALSO FAILS AS A MATTER OF LAW

Again, there is no record citation and no indication this issue was preserved at the trial level. Irrespective of the failure of Blocker to follow the rules of appellate procedure, he is also incorrect as a matter of law. Assuming arguendo that the trial judge did sign the order "a mere three days after it was submitted", the trial judge is not bound by the Rules of Civil Procedure. Although Blocker references Utah Rule of Civil Procedure 7(j)(2), that rule used to be Rule 7(f)(2).³ That rule contemplates that within 14 days of being directed by the court to prepare a proposed order confirming the court's decision, a party must serve the proposed order on the other parties for review and approval as to form. Rule 7(f)(2) (now 7(j)(2)) does not limit the district court's discretion to enter judgments and orders. See <u>Henshaw v. Estate of King</u>, 2007 UT App 378, § 25, 173 P.3d 876. "To the contrary, Utah case law indicates that the rules pertaining to the entry of proposed judgments and orders are binding only on the litigants and not on the trial court." In particular, rule 7(f)(2) "places no restrictions on when a trial court may sign a proposed judgment or order". *Id.* The new rule 7(j)(2), which is the old 7(f)(2), governs the actions of litigants and not those of the district court. Thus, the election of the district court to execute the order three days

۲

0

۲

٢

0

6

 \bigcirc

۲

³ Rule 7 Advisory Committee Notes references the 2015 changes to Rule 7. *See* http://www.utcourts.gov/resources/rules.urcp/urcp007.note.html

after it being submitted does not violate the requirements of that rule. This applies equally to the other subsections of Rule 7 referenced by Blocker because the argument, supra, is the same.

Blocker claims he did not receive any notice of the Order (presumed to be Order Modifying Custody Order, since that is the only order attached to his addendum). That order clearly has a Certificate of Service, electronically executed by attorney Wesley D. Felix, that on the 25th day of June, 2015 he "caused a true and correct copy of the foregoing [PROPOSED] ORDER TEMPORARILY MODIFYING CUSTODY ORDER AND SETTING ADDITIONAL MATTERS FOR HEARING WITHIN 90 DAYS to be served via the Court's electronic filing system upon all of counsel of record and by mail to the Respondent Michael P. Blocker. This is certified to by the signing attorney Wesley D. Felix.

Oddly, although Blocker complains he never received service of the order, the second document attached to Blocker's addendum, Motion Objecting to Petitioner's Order of June 10, 2015, is unsigned by Blocker and has a proposed date that is blank but states "DATED this _____ day of May, 2014." Further, he has a Certificate of Service that includes this statement: "I certify that on this ______ day of May, 2014, I have mailed first-class postage prepaid a copy of this motion to Petitioner's attorney" and lists Wesley D. Felix, but both the Motion and Certificate are unsigned. The date of May, 2014 cannot possibly be the month that Blocker purportedly filed his Motion since the first sentence of the first page states, MICHAEL BLOCKER RESPONDS TO PETITIONER'S PROPOSED "ORDER MODIFYING CUSTODY" of June 10, 2015 AS FOLLOWS:" Irrespective, this is the evidence submitted by Blocker.

Blocker's argument on Argument III three fails for three reasons. First, there is no citation

19

0

۲

۲

۲

0

0

0

to the record or any proof this issue was preserved at trial. Second, even the evidence submitted by Blocker that is not a record citation but an attachment to his addendum, indicates a Certificate of Mailing was signed by Morkel's trial attorney certifying he sent Blocker a copy of the proposed order. He also submits what is apparently a phony Motion since the dates do not match. Third, it fails as a matter of law.

The decision of the trial court should be affirmed and attorney's fees and costs awarded to

Morkel.

ARGUMENT IV

BLOCKER'S ARGUMENT THAT THE TRIAL COURT ERRED WHEN IT DEPRIVED BLOCKER OF HIS RIGHT TO DUE PROCESS BY REFUSING TO ALLOW HIM TO ARGUE HIS MOTION TO DISMISS PETITIONER'S PETITION TO MODIFY DURING THE HEARING AND INSTEAD MERELY STATED THAT HE HAD MADE HIS DECISION AND WAS GOING TO GRANT THE PETITION, THE JUDGE SIGNED THE ORDER WITHOUT NOTIFYING BLOCKER AND NEVER SENT A COPY OF THE ORDER TO BLOCKER, FAILED TO ACT ON TWO PROPERLY NOTICED AND SUBMITTED MOTIONS THAT WERE NOT OBJECTED TO FOR A PERIOD OF SIX MONTHS, AND WHEN THE JUDGE CHANGED A STATUS CONFERENCE INTO AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING WITHOUT NOTICE AND DID NOT GIVE BLOCKER AN OPPORTUNITY TO PREPARE OR REBUT MORKEL'S WITNESSES IS COMPOUND, TENUOUS AND UNSUPPORTED BY ANY RECORD CITATIONS OR REFERENCES TO WHERE THE ISSUES WERE PRESERVED AT TRIAL; FURTHER, THE RECORD IN THE ADDENDUMS DOES NOT SUPPORT BLOCKER'S ALLEGATIONS

There are no record citations nor references to the record to show where the issues alleged

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